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i IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING
; CALLED BY THE OlL CONSERVATION

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COMMISSION OF NEW MEXICO FOR
THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

CASE NO, ?90

THE APPLICATION OF THE COMMISSION
UPON ITS OWN MOTION, FOR REVISIONS

AND AMENDMENTS TO PARAGRAPH 10 OF
ORDER R-520 AND RULE 17 OF EACH OF THE
VARIOUS SPECIAL RULES AND REGULATIONS
FOR GAS POOLS IN SOUTHEAST NEW MEXICO,
AS EMBRACED IN ORDER R-520.

ORDER OF THE COMMIBSION

BY THE COMMISSION:

This cause came on for heariag at 9 o'tleck a. m. oa November
17, 1954 at Sanisa Fe¢, New Mexice, befors the Oil Conservation Commission,

hereinafter referred to as the "Commission”,

-4
NOW, ea this “day of November, 1y54, the Commission,
a quorum being present, having considered the vecords and teetimony
adduced, and being fully advised im the premises,

FYINDS:
(1) That due notice of the time and place of hearing and the

purpese thereef having beea given as required by law, the Cm&nion
has jurisdiction of this matter and the subjéct matier thereef.

(2) That it is in the interests of orderly and efficient ldminiltrttiv*
procedure, with due regard for the prevention of waste and the pretection of
correlative rights, to grant administrative exceptions to the ''no-flare order
and the various "ao-mu rules'' embraced in Order 2-510. without the

ncecnity of notice and heaving.

(3) That the practice of considering said applications for
“exceptions oaly upon notice and hearing would cause an undue burden upon
and {nconvenience to both the applicants and this Commission.

(4) That Paragraph 10 of Order R~520 and Rule 17 of each of the

‘various pool rules and regulations embraced in said Order R-520 should be .

amended as hereinafter provided. i

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

(1) That Paragraph (10) of Order R~520, be and the same is hereby
amended to read as follows:
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Order No, R-55)

(10) That except when authorimed by or pursuant to the follow-
ing provisions of this paragraph (10}, no gas, e¢ither dry gas or casinghead
gas, shall be flared or veated from any well in any &f the following poels
at any ‘ime after ninety (90) days from January}, 1935 or niacty (90) days
from the date such well is completed, whichever is lates

 Eunice-Monumeni Oil Posl -
South Eunice Oil Poel
Hardy Oil Pool
Penrose-Skelly Otl Poel
Coeper-Jal Oil Poeol
Arrowhead Oil Poel
Langlie-Matiix Oil Posl
Rhodes Oil Poal -
Leenard Oil Poel

Sowih Lesnard Oil Pool
Eaves Oil Peol

Arvew Gas Poel
Eument Gas Posl
Jalmat Gas Pesl

. Any eperator who desires to obtain an exception tothe forvegoing
provisions of this paragraph (16) shall submit to thie Secreiary of the
Commiseien, an application for such exception with a sworn statement
setting forth the facts and cizcumstances justifying such exception. The
Secretary.is hereby authorized to grant such an exception whenever the
graanting of the cxception is ressonadly necessary to protect correlative
vights, preveat waste, or prevent undue hardship en the applicant under
all the facts and circumstances as set forth in the statement. The
Secretary sball either {2} grant the exception within 15 days after receipt
of the applicstion and statement or (b) thereafter set the application for
hearing by the Commission at & regular monthly hearing; provided, how-

| ever, that no such applicant shall imcur any penalty by reasea of a delay

in setting the application for hearing. Notice of hearing of the application
shall be published in the manner provided by law and the Rules of the
Commissien. I the exception is graated by the Secretary, a list of such
exceptions shall be distributed in the Commisaion's regular mailing list.

-All eperators who have net heretofore done so shall file Form
C-l0 in quadruplicate with the Commissioan, designating thereon the

i dispesition of all dry gas or caéinghead gas from each well in each poel

' listed above. Within 15 days after an oil or gas well within the boundaries

‘ of any of the above listed poels is connected tc a gas transportation facility,
. the ¢perator shall file Form C-10 dnignating the disposition of gas from

the well,

The flariag o7 veating of gas from any well in violation of any

: provislon of this paragraph (10) will result in suspension of any further
- allowasble until further order of the Comrmnission, -

No.extraction plant processing any gas from any of the above
designated pools shall flare or vent such gas unless such flaring or

- venting is made necessary by mechanical difficulties or unless the gas

. flared or vented is of no commercial value.
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Order No. R-533

* IT IS FURTHER ORDERED- That Rule 17 of cich of the sais d
Rules and Regulations pertaining 10 the Jalmat Gas Peel, the Eumnent Gas
Poel, and the Arrow Gas Peol in said Order R-520 be, and the same are

hniby. smended to vead 8s fellows:

"RULE 17

Ne gas, either dry gas or casinghead gas, preduced frem the »
(Jalmas, Eumont oxr Arrow) gas poels shall be flared or vented cxecpt as

suthorined under the provisions of Paragraph (10) of this evder.

DONE at Santa rc. New Mexico, the day and year hereinabeve
“MM

8 TATE OF NEW MEXICO
OIL CONSERVATION COMMESSION

K redl—

I‘D'DI lo. uxcant. Clﬂm

E. 8. WALKER, Member

VET

W. B. MACEY, Member and Secretary
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BEFORE THE

®il Gonservation Connnission

SANTA Fg, NEW MEeXico
November 17, 19514

IN THE MATTER OF:

case No. 790 ~ Regular Hearing

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

ADA DEARNLEY AND ASSOCIATES
COURT REPORTERS

RooMs 105, 106, 107 EL CORTEZ BUILDING
TELEPHONE 7-9546
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEeXIcO




. BEFORE THH®
OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Santa Fe, New Mexico '
November 17, 195/

IN THE MATTER 0%:'

Application of the 0il Conservation
Commission for an order revising the
provisions of Order R-520 to permit the
Secretary to approve administratively
requests for exception to the 'No-Flare!

Rule. Case No. 790

R P N D L L S e L WL AL e
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BEFORE:
Honorable Edwin L. Mechem

Mr. E. S. (Johnny) Walker
Mr., William B. Macey

TRANSGRIPT OF HEARING

MR. MACEY: The next case on the docket is Case 790.

MR. KITTS: If it please the Commission, I would like to
introduce, at this time, the staff proposed amendments to Paragrap!
10 of Order‘37520, Rule 17 of the various Speciél Rules and Regu-
latiqns of the gas pools in the soutﬁeast, in connection with “ﬁo:
Flare¥ Order.

MR. MACEY: Does everyone have a copy of this proposél.

*

MR, HINKLE: That is the mimeographed copy?

MR. BMACEY: Is there objection to introduction of this
exhibit? If not it will be received in evidence. Anyone have
any comments to make in regard to the proposal?

MR. HINKLE: Clarence Hinkle, representing Amerada Petrole

[

1T

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES
STENOTYPE REPORTERS
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
TELEPHONE 3-669%
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Corporatipn. The Amerada feels that a reasonable rule should be
promulgated so as to give any operator, after qohbletion of the
gas well, reasonable time to make a connection. I think that this
proposed rule of the Commission does that very thing. Tt allows
90 days within wnich to make a connection. If the connection’cana
not be made at that time, it permits the operaﬁéh'fb make appli-
cation to the Commission for an administrative order, granting an
exception. The Amerada would like to go on record as favoring
the adoption of the rule wnich has been proposed.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else?

MR. KELLAHIN: If the Commission please --

MR. MACEY: (Interrupting) Mr. K&llahin. Go ahead.

MR. KELLAHIN: I just have a question. It ocgurred to me,
under the proposed rule that vecomes effective January 1st, what

does the Commission have in mind on the cases which are now pend-

"ing for exceptions?

MR. MACEY: Mr. Kéllahin, it was felt that‘it would be agd-

If we felt that the case was adéquatély covered by their present
application, we would go ahead and treat that application as a
request under the provisions of this proposéd:rule, and give the
operator the administrative relief and dismiss ﬁhe present cases.
If we felt that there were certain instances where we could not
give you the administrative relief we would advise you and set the
case fof hearing in December. A

MR, KELLAHIN: We would like to know if we could supplemen
the applications that have been submitbed?

MR, MACEY: Very definitely.

- visable to review the applications in those cases which are pendin%.

T

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES
STYENOTYPE REPORTERS
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
TELEPHONE 3-6691
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MR. KELLAHIN: Does the Commission propose to go ahead?

MR. MACEY: I didn't follow you.

MRo KELLAHIN: Under the terms of the order it becomes
effective January 1st. Tée Commission proposes to go ahead as if
the order were in‘effecb,:granting the approval after the date of
January'lsb,vis that_correct? What I am getting at, Mr. Macey, we
have an order here that becomes effecbive—Jahﬁary lst. We have
applications pending, areéyou going to act on them before January
1st? j M‘ ,
MR. MACEY: Very definitely. We will word the rule so tha
we will act prior to Jan&ary 1lst on your requests for exceptiqns.

MR. KELLAHIN: That clarifies it.

MR. MACEY: Mr. Howell?

¥MR. HOWELL: Ben'Howéll, representing £1 Paso Natural Gas

Company. We have a suggestion with reference to the sentence in

the paragraph next to the bottom of the pazge which reads:"Extracti

- -Plants processing any gés>from any of the above designated pools

ghall comply with the™no-flare! provisions of this rule, provided,
however, that the reSﬁ;iEtioﬁr méy be lifted when mechanical ”
difficulties arisé, ér when tﬁe gas~flare is of no commércial
value.?

Was the intention ﬁﬁétwin éééé”bfwmechaniéal»breakdown,,that'
an appiicétion would be made to the Commission to get the re-
striction lifted, or is it the intention that in those events the
{laring 1is given automaﬁically?

MR, MACEY: I cén't answer that yet, Mr. Howell. The
intent is to give you a?blanket aunthority to vent gas when you

have mechanical breakdowns.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES
_ SYENOTYPE REPORTYERS
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
TELEPHONE 3-6691
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MR. HOWELL: 'Then I suggest that the phrase "The restrictipns
may be lifted"™ be changed to say that“the restrictions shall not - ’ -

apply¥, because, I believe maybe lifted infers that some action

must be taken to 1lift it.
'MR. MACEY: Anyone else?

MR. CAMPBELL: Jack Campbell. T am asking these questiong
pﬁrély for my own information. rFifSt, does the Commission have
in mind setting out‘any‘basiq standards as to the facts and
circumstances they desire to ha&e, with reference to these appli-
Cations? By that I mean, is therevto bedany uniformity? If you
are called upon to submit an application-it is a little bit diffi-
cult to tell from this rule whaﬁ the Commission hasrén mind with
. '} reference to thé facts and circumstances juStifyiﬂglﬁhe exception.
What would justify it to ﬁe might not juspify it to someone else
of the Commission. -

MR. MACEY: Mr. Campbell{ I think- the basié facts involved
are that the gas from a well or a gfoup of wells has been tenderedr
first of all to a transmission company. If it is uneconomic for the
gathering company gasoline plant, or whatever you want to call it,
to go out and pick up, the fact;iI think that is a factor in suppért
of the exception. | '

Therz are probably other factors involved that I dont't know o]

right now: I believe that a letter of explanation probably ought to

L

be sent out with the order in this case, setting out certain thing

that we wodld, I wouldn't want to limit it to just exactly what I
v know of vight now, because I would probably overlook sométhingthat

someone would come'up with, and they would start applying for a

R PR :

3

S | hearing on it. There are a lot of diiferent factors that may

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES
SYENOTYPE REPORTERS
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
TELEPHONE 3-6691




- there are almost one hundred of these applications.

. extraction plahts. I want to know what is meant, that gas flare

determine -- warrant an exception. I think that one of the quali~
fications would be the €conomics involved.

MR. CAMPBELL: That leads me to my second comment, that is
I believe, that the application now pending before the Commission,
which I hapbeh to have filed,one thatrthe same standérds are goih@
to be called upon for future applications, No-~Flare orders ;bould

apply to the cases now pending before the Commission. As I recall

I think that by some amendment, that the same information be
furnished that is required to be furnished under the proposéd rule
after January, 1955, The other matter is purely a matter of

terminélogy. I am not well qualified with the business of

is not ofASUfficient commercial value. Does that mean it is not
sufficient BTU to call upon anybody to buy it or can't séll it?

MR. MACEY: It certainly doesn't mean that that they can't
sell it. I thinkiit is mainly designed to take care of gas thét
is of high sulphur content that the& cérééinly wouldntt put into
a line. Maybe Mrf Howell can clarify that‘matter if he wants.to;
Isn't that your interprétation of it, Mr. Howell?

MR. HOWELL: I don't know that we have any interpretation
of it. Of course, ‘insofar as El Paso Natural Gas Company is con-
cerned, why it takes sour as well as sweet gas wherever the
facilities are available, but certainly we would consider that .
where treating facilities are not available and pipeline can't use
sour gas, there would be nothing there but to flare it after it
had gone through the extraction plant.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else?

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES
SYENOTYPE REPORYERS
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
TELEPHONE 3-66901




MR. MANKIN: After these approvals are given the admini-
strative orders, you at that time should but in C-llO, showing
that disposition had been appro?ed for flare.

MR. MACEY: That wouldn't be necessary. They will have a
Qoéy of the order that approve the exception~gfahted to your well
of wells. They won't require the 110. |

MR. MANKIN: So, the C-110 is not necessary.

MEf SELINGER: It is only when you do connect that you
have to put oh the C-110. \

MR. KELLAHIN: I have another question, Mr. Macey. Is thes
any provision going to be made where the gas from a well is commit{
to a pléht by contract instead of flaring it at the plant? They
are not taking it and flaring it at the lease. That situétion has
come up. |

MR, MACEY: As I understand it, you mean --

 MR. KELLAHIN: (Interrupting) Who is going to be
responsible fOr}“g?_~4

MR. MACEY:’ The operator of the well.

‘ .~ MR. KELLAHIN: The operator of the well? His gas is
already committed by contract. )

MR. MACEY: Are they paying you for it?

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes. '

MR. MACEY: It is metered?

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes.

MR. SELINGER: It is still the obligation of the producer.

MR. MACEY: It is the operator's obligation to get the
exception. kYou are going to have to sﬁppiement your application

with something.

te
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MR. SELINGER: They are generally of a temporary nature
until the pipeline éan take it. ‘
MR. KELLAHIN: They aée of a temporary nature. .
MR. MACEY: Is thereé anyone else? i
MR. HOWARD: I think that question will lead to better
conservation of casinghead gas in the State of New Mexico.
MR. COUCH: Terrell Couch, on behalf of Ohio 0il Company.
I would like to suggest that the proposed amendment in&lude the
provisions as the exceptions are granted, they will bejperiodicallj
printed and circulated along wvith the docket notice, s§ that the
operators will have notice of any of the exceptions thét are
granted. They can come in and objeCt-later at the hea?ing if they
wanted to. |
One other suggestion I'might»make in céﬁnéctidn wﬁth the time
within which the Commission acts under the proposed rule. I
suggesﬁ that, at least that at the outset the COmmissidn might find

itself with quite a large number of applications to either grant

within 15 days or set down for hearing at the next hearing date.

That time limit in there might work fine after you get started, but

at the outset it might work a problem for the Commission, and, pers

Haps;xmm consideration should be given to a longer pefiod of time
there for the final exceptions that are granted.

MR. MACEY: In regard to what you just said, it is our
intent toAgo:through the applications and -screen éhem; The ones
that we don't think we should approve administratively we will
advise the operator immediately and the case will come up for

- December hearing. The rest of them, we will date the:approval

January lst because that is the effective date of this rule.

“

-
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Commission, if they think it is advisable and circumstances change

MR. COUCH: .I suggest also, again as a matter of mechanics)
that in the future when an application comes in, that if this rulé
is effective as written and you have 15 days thereafter in which ta
grant the exceptioh or set it for ﬁhe next regular meeting, that
could be the 16th day so that --

MR. MACEY: (Interrupting} Oh, no.

MR. COUCH: The way it is worded now; iﬁ is required that
itrhe set for hearing at the nekt regular hearing date, following
15 déys‘éfter the application has been received by the Commission.
So, that you may not know until the day before, the way the rule ig
worded. It is;just a suggestion in terminology.

MR. MACEY: Why not substitute the words, '"shall be set for
hearing as soon as pOSSible?", Anyone else?

MR. WALKER: I just want to ask a question, Mr. Macey. I
understand by this, this‘would-be a permanent exception, there
will be no review in the future. In other words, it is not going
to get a temporary period, once you get a hearing it is forever?

MR; MACEY: Mr. Yost brought up that mattér this morning.

I thihk the matter ought to be reviewed from time to time by the

from one period of time to another. They should probably reserve
the right to bring the matter’back up again'if it warrantsAit. I
think they have that right ényway. I think it probably should be.
put in every exception that is granted. I will put‘it this way. |
It is our intent to give the exception ﬁntil you hear anything\
further from us. ” | 5

MR, STANLEY: At this particular time, Order R-520 requirep

the filing of C-110 pertaining to dispbsition of casinghead gas.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSQCIATES
STENOTYPE REPORYERS
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
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I believe that in the future fpr»newly-completed wells in this
particular area that there shbgld be some provision wvhere it be
30 days, 60 days or 90 days, pertaining to dually completed wells,
whereby a Form C-110 could be requiréd,'pertaining to the disposi-
tion of casinghead gas.

MR, MACEY: What differencé is there between a dually

completed well and a singly completed well.

- - MRe STANLEY: It doesn't matter, I don't think thére:is

a provision in the rule if he completed a new‘weli, singly or
dually, to file a C-110 for the disposition of Casinghead»gas.
vThere is no ‘time requirement. There may be a time where it would
fequire\a'pipeline to take 30 days’to that partiCulaf well, or

may take 60 days, but nevertheless, within a certain peniod-of tim
we should know to what particular plant that well is going to be
connected to. ‘ V ‘

MR. MACEY: Anyone else?

MR. SELINGER: Isn't that covered in your C-115 now, the
present C-115, it indicates what you do with the gas from each
1ease,whdﬁug-it is used on the lease or sold to ﬁhe'pipeline or
blowﬁ io‘theAair. I don't think you have to do aﬁything further.
You make a monthly report each month on it. |

MR. MACEY: You report monﬁhly the volume of gas and the
disposition of that gas?

MR. SELINGER: That is right, whether it is blown to the

. air or otherwise. It is already required in the monthly report.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else? If not we will take the case

under advisement.

AU
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
- 88,
COUNTY OF BERNALILLO )

I, __ADA DEABNLEY , Court Reppi*ter, do hereby |

certify that the foregoing”and attached transcript of proceedings

_before the New Mexic‘o"OiI_l Conservation Commission at Santa Fe,

New Mexico, is a true snd correct record to the-test of my.
knowledge, skill and ability,
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have affixed my hand and notarial

seal this 20th day of November, — , 1954.

'thér:r Fublie, Court Reporzer-

My Commission Expires:

June 19, 1955
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO PARAGRAPH 10 OF ORLER 520 AND
RULE 17 OF THE VARIOUS SPECIAL RULES AND REGULATIONS
FOR GAS POOLS IN SOUTHEAST NEW MF‘.‘.XVICO

i (10) Thst no gas shall be flared or vented from any well in
the following pools ninety (90) days from the effective date of this
rule or ninety (90) days from the date such well is completed, which-
ever is later, unless sgpecifically authorized by the Commission:

T g

Eunice-Monument 0il Pool
South Eunice 0il Pool
Bardy 0il Pool

: Penrfose-Skelly 0il Pool
! Cooper-Jal -0il Pool

‘ Arrowhead 0il Pool _
Langlie-Mattix 0il Pool
Rhodes 0il Pool

ILeonard 0il Pool

South Leonard 0il Pool
Baves Qil Podl

Arrow (Ga&s Pool

Eumont Ges Pool

Jalmat Gas Pool

D

S SR S,

This rule shall become effective January 1, 1955. Any operator
- desiring to obtain an exception to this rule shall submit a sworn
statement setting forth the facts and circumstences justifying such
exception. Unless the Commission, acting through its Secretary, grants
such exception within 15 days after receipt of the operator's sworn
: statement, the matter shall be set for hesring dat the next regular
£ meeting of the Commission. Wlt.hig 10 days after a beneficial use is
‘ found for gas produced from a well grented an exception under this
rule or a well completed after the effective date of this rule, the
operator shall file form C-110 designating the disposition of gas from
the well. ‘

Fallure to comply with the provisions of this rule within the
L prescribed time limits will result in the suspension of any fuirther
- allowable. Extraction plants processing any gas from any of the above
! - designated pools shall comply with the, "no-flare" provisions of this
; ; rule, provided however, that the restriction may be lifted when
! : mechanical difficulties arise or when the gas flared is of no com-

i mercial value, ‘

‘ Rule Rule 17. No gas, either dry gas or casinghead gas, produced
: from The Pool shall be flared or vented unless
; : specifically authorized by the Commission.
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October 28, 195k

Mr. William B. Macey

Director, 0il Conservation Comm1ss1on
P. 0. Box 871

Santa Fe, New HMexico

Dear Bill:

In line with our off-the-record conversation at the hearing in
Hobbs last month, we are sending you suggested amendments of Paragraph 10
of Order 520 and Rule 17 of the various special rules and regulations for
each of the gas pools. Ve think these amendments wmignt be better proposed
on the Cormission's own motion, but if you prefer you ngy treat this as
Amzr>d= ' gpplication for the following smendments:

"(10) That no gas shell be flared or vented from any well- in
the following pools ninety (SO) days from the effective date of this
rule or ninety {90) days from the date such well is completed, whichever
‘is later, unless specifically auvthorized by the Commission:

Bunice-Monuunent 0il Pool
Suuth Bunice 0il Pool -

'~ Hardy 0il Pool
Penrose-Skelly. 0il Pool
Cooper-Jal 0il Pool
Arrowhead 0il Pool
Langlie-Mattix 0il Pcol
Rhodes 0il Pool
Leonard 0il Pool
Soutn Leonard 0il Pool
Eaves 0il Pool
Arrov Gas Pool
Fumont Gas Pool

~ Jalmat Gas Pool -

This rule shall become effective Janvary 1, 1955. Any operator
desiring to obtain an exceotion to this rule sball submit a sworn
statement settiﬁg forth the facts and circumstances justifying such
exception. Unless the Commission, acting througn its Secretary, grants
such exception witnin 15 days after receipt of the operator's sworn
statement, the metier shall be set for hearing at the next regular
meeting of the Corrmission. Within 10 days after o beneficial use is
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tound for gas produced from a well granted an exception under this
rule or a well completed after the effective date of this rule, the
ODelatOI shall file form C-110 designating the dlspocltlon of gas from
the well.

Failure to comply with the provisions of this rule within the
prescribed time limits will result in the suspension of any further
allowable. Extraction plants processing any ges from any of the above
designated pools shall comply with the 'no-flare' provisions of this rule,
provided however, that the restriction may be lifted when mechanical
difficulties arise or when the gas flared is of no coumercial value."

YRule 17. No gas, either dry gas or casinghead gas, produced
from the Pool shall be flared or vented unless
pec1f1cally authorlzed by the Commission."

Our thought in permitting flaring or venting of gas for ninety (90)

‘days after a well is completed is that the operator in every instance should

be afforded some reasonsble time to seek a’pipeline connection. ~If he gets
a connaction during this time, there is no reason to burden the Commission
with.unnecessary applications. Only where gas from an oil well is produced

“in 1nslcn1flcant quantities or some exceptional difficulty is encountered

in marketing production from 2 new well or the well is located on an isolated
lease to which it is not economically feasible to run a pipeline - only in
these cases, we feel, should the Commission be burdened with requests for
exceptions to the no-flare rule. We arefnot particularly stuck on ninety
(90) days as a reasonable grace period for seeking a pipeline connection

if’ some other periocd of time is found nore reasonable.

Bob and I are looking forward to seelng you next month and send
oui~ best regards.

Very truly yours,

JOHN A. WOODWARD
JAW :MT | »




